DPetitiorn to the

L To recommend oversight of the Office of Special Counsel (OSC) and the Merit System
Protection Board (MSPB), regarding compliance of their non-discretionary duties to
protect federal employees from prohibited personnel practices.

II. To recommend the creation of an independent panel to investigate the causes of OSC’s
and MSPB’s non-compliance of their statutory duties, and to determine the impact on the
merit principles of the civil service and the federal employees directly affected.

III.  To allow the independent panel to make recommendations to Congress in order to ensure
OSC and MSPB comply with their statutory duties, and to provide some measure of
justice and restoration to all federal employees that have been negatively affected.

We the undersigned hereby petition Congress to discharge its oversight
authority of OSC’s compliance with aspects of its statutory duties to protect federal employees
from prohibited personnel practices (PPP’s), in particular, agency whistleblower retaliation
against employees and OSC’s non-compliance with its statutory obligations to report the results
of investigations it conducts in accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 1216.

Additionally, we recommend that Congress conduct needed oversight of MSPB, including its
statutory duty to conduct studies of OSC’s performance in protecting federal employees from
PPP’s, and the MSPB’s duty to determine and report to Congress and the President “as to
whether the public interest in a civil service free of PPP’s is being adequately protected.”

We contend that OSC has failed to comply with its fundamental statutory duty to 10,000 or more
federal employees, who filed approximately 25,000 PPP complaints since 1989. In the vast
majority of those complaints, OSC has failed to make and appropriately report its determination
“whether there are reasonable grounds to believe a PPP has occurred, exists, or is to be taken.”



We contend that OSC has failed to comply with its lawful duties to protect federal employees
from PPP’s, and as a result, has significantly harmed the merit principles of the federal civil
service, and has contributed to the continual occurrence of significant fraud, waste, and abuse in
the federal government.

We contend that OSC has failed to protect federal whistleblowers from reprisal, indirectly at
least, and has likely contributed to national disasters such as 9/11, the failure of the levees in
New Orleans, the inept FEMA response to hurricane Katrina, the loss of space shuttle Columbia,
as well as other instances of federal incompetence and malfeasance.

We are concerned that OSC’s non-compliance with its statutory obligations to protect federal
employees from PPP’s contributes, at least indirectly, to an increased and unnecessary risk of a
nuclear 9/11, other catastrophic terrorist attacks, and many other issues that compromise the
safety and welfare of American citizens.

We believe that 10,000 or more loyal, patriotic, federal employees, who filed PPP complaints
with OSC since 1989, have been negatively impacted by OSC’s failure to comply with its
statutory duties to protect them — particularly the 3000 or more federal employees who filed
whistleblower appeals at MSPB after seeking, and failing to obtain OSC’s protection.

This petition is largely about OSC’s compliance pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 1214(e), by which OSC
is to report to the involved agency head, for any investigation it conducts in accordance with
sections 1214 or 1216, and its final determination that there is “reasonable cause to believe” any
violation of any law, rule, or regulation has occurred. Despite this clear and unambiguous
language, OSC now claims that section 1214(e) does not apply to the laws authorizing its
investigations and within its jurisdiction. Additionally, OSC now claims to have complete
discretion in reporting its determinations of violation of any law, rule, or regulation that is not
under its enforcement jurisdiction.

Since the Whistleblower Protection Act of 1989 was enacted, OSC has not made a single report
to any agency head in accordance with section 1214(e), even after completing over 8000 field
investigations. This fact is based on a review of OSC’s Annual Reports to Congress and its
public records maintained at its Washington, DC office, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 1219(a)(3).

We therefore petition Congress to conduct needed oversight of OSC’s erroneous
and inaccurate interpretation of 5 U.S.C. § 1214(e), along with OSC’S other statutory obligations
to both Congress and the public. We additionally petition Congress to conduct oversight of
MSPB concerning its statutory responsibilities to conduct meaningful oversight of OSC’s
actions, as further explained in the attached Addendum.



Jimmie Bacco

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Richard Barlow

Federal Whistleblower

Former WMD Intelligence Officer
Central Intelligence Agency

P. Jeffrey Black

Federal Whistleblower

Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

John Borgic

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Forester

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Joseph Carson, P.E.
Federal Whistleblower
Nuclear Safety Engineer
U.S. Department of Energy

Andrea Carter

Federal Whistleblower

Fire Fuel Specialist

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Saundra Counce

Federal Whistleblower

Registered Nurse

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

Larry Cruse

Federal Whistleblower

Former Senior Intelligence Analyst

U.S. National Ground Intelligence Center

Carol Czarkowski
Federal Whistleblower
Retired Contracting Officer
U.S. Department of Navy

Ollie Darby

Federal Whistleblower
Retired Auditor

U.S. Department of Energy

Anthony D’ Armiento
Federal Whistleblower
Naval Engineer

U.S. Coast Guard

Robert Davis

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Contract Management Specialist
Environmental Protection Agency

Jeffrey Denning

Federal Whistleblower

Former Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Lesa Donnelly
Federal Whistleblower
Former Administrator
U.S. Forest Service

The Lloyd-La Follette Act

The right of federal employees, individually or collectively, to petition Congress or a Member of
Congress, or to furnish information to either House of Congress, or to a committee or Member
thereof, may not be interfered with or denied. [5 U.S.C. § 7211]



Elaine Downing

Whistleblower Advocate

Union Officer

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Bogdan Dzakovic

Federal Whistleblower

Former Supervisory Special Agent
Federal Aviation Administration

Steve Elson

Federal Whistleblower

Former Special Agent

Federal Aviation Administration

Howard Floch, M.D.

Federal Whistleblower

Former Staff Surgeon

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

Dr. Louis Fontana

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Staff Physician

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

Larry Fisher

Federal Whistleblower

Staff Accountant

Environmental Protection Agency

Darlene Fitzgerald
Federal Whistleblower
Former Special Agent
U.S. Customs Service

Dr. Jeffrey Fudin
Federal Whistleblower
Founder, Veteran Affairs
Whistleblower Coalition

Fernando Gonzalez
Whistleblower Advocate

Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Ruben Gonzalez

Whistleblower Advocate

Retired Assoc. Special Agent-in-Charge
U.S. Customs Service

Sandalio Gonzalez

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Special Agent-in-Charge
Drug Enforcement Administration

Paulette Gordon

Federal Whistleblower

Former Contract & Procurement Officer
U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Jim Griffin

Federal Whistleblower

Former Screener

Transportation Security Administration

Montie Guthrie

Federal Whistleblower

Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Traci Hallstrom

Federal Whistleblower

Field Office Administrator

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Stace Hallstrom

Federal Whistleblower

Field Office Administrator

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

The Lloyd-La Follette Act

The right of federal employees, individually or collectively, to petition Congress or a Member of
Congress, or to furnish information to either House of Congress, or to a committee or Member
thereof, may not be interfered with or denied. [5 U.S.C. § 7211]



William Hallstrom
Whistleblower Advocate
Former Smoke Jumper
U.S. Forest Service

Scott Harrington, PharmD
Federal Whistleblower

Pharmacist

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

Matthew Hayes

Federal Whistleblower

Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Dr. Charles Heckman
Federal Whistleblower

Former Fishery Research Officer
U.S. Forest Service

Richard Hoskins

Federal Whistleblower

Former Security/Operations Officer
U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Jeffrey Holst

Federal Whistleblower

Police Officer

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

Don Houser

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Contracts Management Specialist
Environmental Protection Agency

Dr. James Huff
Federal Whistleblower
Assoc. Dir. for Chemical Carcinogenesis

Annie Jacobsen
Whistleblower Advocate
Journalist & Writer (Aviation)
www.TheAviationNation.com

Brett Jarmin

Federal Whistleblower

Former Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Douglas Kinan

Federal Whistleblower

Former Equal Employment Specialist
Defense Contract Management Agency

Diane King

Federal Whistleblower

Former Medical Technologist

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

Marsha Madewell

Federal Whistleblower

Claims Examiner

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

Joseph Mansour
Federal Whistleblower
Corrections Officer
U.S. Bureau of Prisons

Dona Maxcy

Whistleblower Advocate

Property Management Specialist
U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Shawn McCullers
Federal Whistleblower
Retired Federal Air Marshal

Nat. Inst. of Environmental Health Services U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

The Lloyd-La Follette Act

The right of federal employees, individually or collectively, to petition Congress or a Member of
Congress, or to furnish information to either House of Congress, or to a committee or Member
thereof, may not be interfered with or denied. [5 U.S.C. § 7211]



Patricia McKee

Federal Whistleblower

Former Food & Safety Inspector
U.S. Department of Agriculture

Neil McHaffey

Whistleblower Advocate

Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Gary Mullet

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Civil Engineer

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Carolyn Mudd

Federal Whistleblower
Field Office Administrator
U.S. Forest Service

William Newby

Federal Whistleblower

Contract Management Specialist
Environmental Protection Agency

Sandy Nunn
Federal Whistleblower
Former Special Agent
U.S. Customs Service

Kenneth O’Neill
Whistleblower Advocate

Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Michael O’Neill

Federal Whistleblower

Former Screening Operations Manager
Transportation Security Administration

Albert Ortiz

Whistleblower Advocate

Retired Senior Special Agent
Immigration & Customs Enforcement

Michael Ostrolenk
Whistleblower Advocate
National Director,

The Liberty Coalition

Anil Parikh, M.D.

Federal Whistleblower

Former Staff Physician

U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

John Petric

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Analyst

Office of Personnel Management

Valerie Parker

Whistleblower Advocate

Internet Technology Specialist
U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Spencer Pickard

Federal Whistleblower

Former Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

Franklin Puello

Federal Whistleblower

Former Screening Supervisor
Transportation Security Administration

Curt Read

Federal Whistleblower

Special Agent

Federal Aviation Administration

The Lloyd-La Follette Act

The right of federal employees, individually or collectively, to petition Congress or a Member of
Congress, or to furnish information to either House of Congress, or to a committee or Member
thereof, may not be interfered with or denied. [5 U.S.C. § 7211]



Martin Salazar

Federal Whistleblower
Former Nuclear Engineer
U.S. Department of Energy

Suzanne Schott

Federal Whistleblower

Former Screening Supervisor
Transportation Security Administration

David Shaller, M.D.
Federal Whistleblower
Former Chief Physician
U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs

Bob Simmons

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Forester

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Brian Sullvan

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Special Agent

Federal Aviation Administration

Andy Suppiger

Whistleblower Advocate

GIS Specialist

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Russ Tice

Federal Whistleblower
Former Intelligence Analyst
National Security Agency

Joseph Tyler

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Maintenance Engineer
U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Dr. Gregg Wilkerson

Federal Whistleblower

Federal Minerals Examiner

U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Michael Williams

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Property Control Technician
U.S. Bureau of Land Management

Joseph Zappa

Federal Whistleblower

Federal Air Marshal

U.S. Federal Air Marshal Service

- Attorneys at faw -

Mark Conrad, Esq.

Federal Whistleblower

Retired Resident Agent-in-Charge
U.S. Customs Service

Diane Kleinman, Esq.
Federal Whistleblower
Former Special Agent
U.S. Customs Service

David Nolan, Esq.
Whistleblower Advocate
Former Senior Trial Attorney
U.S. Department of Energy

The Lloyd-La Follette Act

The right of federal employees, individually or collectively, to petition Congress or a Member of
Congress, or to furnish information to either House of Congress, or to a committee or Member
thereof, may not be interfered with or denied. [5 U.S.C. § 7211]
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Federal Hispanic Law Enforcement Officers Association
www.FHLEOA.org

The Liberty Coalition

www.LibertyCoalition.net

Government Accountability Project
www.whistleblower.org

National Accountant Whistleblower Coalition
www.NAWBC.com

Open the Government
www.OpenTheGovernment.org

Veterans Whistleblowers Coalition
www.VAWBC.com

The above listed organizations strongly support the merits and principles of OSC Watch
and the Petition to Congress, and have decided to sign this petition in principle only
without necessarily supporting any of the legal claims or analysis in the petition.



PETITION ADDENDUM

The Office of Special Counsel (OSC) has failed to comply with its fundamental statutory duty
to the approximately 1800 federal employees who annually seek its protection from prohibited
personnel practices (PPP’s), particularly whistleblower reprisal.

The OSC has continuously and blatantly failed to make and appropriately report in accordance
with 5 U.S.C. § 1214(a)(1)(A), (a)(2)(A), (b)(2)(A), (b)(2)(B), (e), section 1218, and/or
section 1219(a)(3), its required PPP determination “whether there are reasonable grounds to
believe a PPP has occurred, exists, or is to be taken.” No one, including the complainants,
Congress, the public, the Merit Systems Protection Board (MSPB), the heads of involved
agencies, and the Office of Personnel Management know the facts regarding OSC’s
implementation of its fundamental statutory duty as an investigatory agency - to make and
appropriately report its PPP determinations.

The OSC’s continuous failure to comply with its statutory duties makes it impossible for
heads of agencies to comply with their duty, in accordance with Section 2302(c), to “prevent
PPP’s” in their agencies.

As demonstrated in a recent federal court decision (Carson v. OSC, docket no. 06-1833,
Federal District Court for the District of Columbia), OSC failed to provide federal employees
who seek its protection from PPP’s, the statutory information, as required pursuant to 5 U.S.C.
§ 1214(a)(2)(A), and the “termination statement” found in the notes of section 1214, when the
OSC terminates its PPP complaint investigations. This particularly prejudices the ability of
complainants alleging whistleblower reprisal to obtain subsequent relief from the MSPB via
an Individual Right of Action (IRA) whistleblower appeal.

The OSC, contrary to federal law, continuously suspends any ongoing investigations of
whistleblower reprisal PPP complaints, if the complainant files a whistleblower appeal with
the MSPB in accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 1214(a)(3)(B) and section 1221. This policy is
contrary to the interests of the complainants, and is in strict violation of 5 U.S.C. § 1214(a)(4).

When the OSC fails to make its required PPP determinations within the 240 day limit,
contrary to the spirit of 5 U.S.C § 1214(b)(2)(A), it threatens to close any PPP investigation
unless the complainant agrees to an open-ended extension of time.

The OSC’s non-compliance with its duties to protect federal employees from PPP’s, is further
enabled by the failure of MSPB to properly conduct its oversight of OSC’s performance in
accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 1204(a)(3) and (e)(3). Given that the OSC is the agency
specifically charged to protect federal employees from PPP’s, MSPB cannot comply with its
duties and make its required determination and report, unless it regularly conducts proper
oversight of the OSC’s performance in this area — something it has failed to do since this
requirement was created in 1989.



10.

The OSC has continuously failed to report its determinations of apparent Hatch Act violations
in accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 1214(e), section 1218, and section 1219(a)(3). According to a
recent Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) response, since 1989, the OSC has made 1,181
such determinations based on investigations conducted pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 1216.

The OSC has continuously failed to investigate the findings of federal judges regarding
possible agency FOIA malfeasance, in accordance with 5 U.S.C. 552(a)(4)(F), which were
reported to the OSC pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 1216(a)(3), and 5 U.S.C. § 552. According to the
limited information provided in the OSC’s own Annual Reports to Congress, OSC has
conducted approximately 40 such field investigations since 1989, without reporting the
investigation results to any of the affected agencies.

Special Counsel Scott J. Bloch has claimed to Congress, as did his predecessors since 1989,
that the OSC’s Annual Report to Congress has always complied with 5 U.S.C. § 1218 — but
they have not. When OSC’s claims are challenged in Court (See Carson v. OSC, docket no.
07-443, Federal District Court for the District of Columbia), instead of defending the
completeness and accuracy of its Annual Reports to Congress, the OSC claims its compliance
is now a matter of discretion. As such, the OSC now claims whatever it chooses in its reports,
regardless of what is required by federal law.
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